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Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets

On November 1, 2016, Xylem Inc. (the “Company”) filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (the “Initial Form 8-K”) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) reporting that on October 31,2016, Xylem Inc. completed the acquisition of all of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of Sensus
Worldwide (other than Sensus Industries) (“Sensus”), pursuant to the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15,2016, and the first
Amendment to the Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 31,2016 (together, the “Purchase Agreement”). The aggregate consideration paid in the
acquisition was approximately $1.7 billion, net of cash acquired, subject to certain adjustments as provided in the Purchase Agreement. The consideration
was funded with a combination of cash on hand, proceeds from issuances under the Company’s existing commercial paper program, borrowings under a new
euro-denominated term loan and the issuance of $500 million aggregate principal amount 0f 3.250% Senior Notes due 2026 and $400 million aggregate
principal amount 0f4.375% Senior Notes due 2046.

This Current Report on Form 8-K/A is being filed to amend and supplement the Initial Form 8-K to provide financial statements described in Item 9.01 below
which were not previously filed with the Initial Form 8-K, and which are permitted to be filed by amendment no later than 71 calendar days after the date the
Initial Form 8-K was required to be filed with the SEC. Except as otherwise noted, all other information in the initial Form 8-K remains unchanged.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits

(a) Financial Statements of'a Business Acquired.

Sensus Worldwide Limited’s audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended, and as of, March 31, 2016 and unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended, and as of, September 30,2016 are attached as Exhibit 99.1 and Exhibit 99.2, respectively, to this Form 8-K/A
and incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information related to the acquisition is attached as Exhibit 99.3 to this Form 8-K/A and
incorporated herein by reference.

(c) None

(d) Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description

Exhibit 23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Exhibit 99.1 Sensus Worldwide Limited audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31,2016

Exhibit 99.2 Sensus Worldwide Limited unaudited consolidated financial statements for the six months ended September 30,2016 and 2015

Exhibit 99.3 Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

XYLEM INC.

Date: January 10,2017 By: /s/ E. Mark Rajkowski

E. Mark Rajkowski

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Authorized Officer of Registrant)




EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

Exhibit 23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Exhibit 99.1Sensus Worldwide Limited audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31,2016

Exhibit 99.2 Sensus Worldwide Limited unaudited consolidated financial statements for the six months ended September 30,2016 and 2015

Exhibit 99.3  Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Accountants

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-177607)of Xylem Inc. of our report dated
June 22, 2016 relating to the financial statements of Sensus Worldwide Limited, which appears in this Current Report on Form 8-K/A of Xylem Inc.

/s PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Raleigh, North Carolina
January 10, 2017



Exhibit 99.1

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Sensus Worldwide Limited

Year Ended March 31, 2016
with Independent Auditor’s Report



Sensus Worldwide Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To Management and the Board of Directors of
Sensus Worldwide Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sensus Worldwide Limited and its subsidiaries, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2016, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss),
changes in stockholder’s equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our auditin
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to
the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sensus

Worldwide Limited and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2016 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

June 22,2016

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Captrust Tower, 4208 Six Forks Road, Suite 1200, Raleigh, NC 27609
T: (919) 791 4000, F: (919) 791 4010, www.pwc.com/us



SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except per share and share data)

March 31
2016
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash eQUIVAIEIES. ..........eeuiriiiiiieieieiete ettt ettt b et teseneas $ 46.4
SHOTT-EEIM INVESTMCILS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt sa ettt et bt b et s bt st et e et ebe st sa b et et eseneeaes 9.2
Accounts receivable:
Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $3.0 and $3.3, respectively. 114.8
Inventories, net. 56.2
Prepayments and Other CUITENE ASSEES.......veveuerurreririereriieteitrieteseetetesesteteseesesenesteteseesesesesseseseesesenesseseeesenen 16.0
DEferred INCOME TAXES. .. ...evrveuiieeeiiietetrtetestet ettt ettt ettt bt b st e et st et eb et st se st et bt st se st esebentsnesennene 31.9
Deferred costs 5.0
Total current assets. 279.5
Property, plant and equipment, net. 106.3
Goodwill and intangible assets, net.... 606.6
Other LONG-TEIIM ASSELS.....veuiuieeeriieterirtetes ettt et ettt sttt s et bt bes et b st b e s e s et eb et et e st eses et ebeseneesesenes 69.8
TOAl ASSLS. c..veveeeeteuiteteiiee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et $ 1,062.2
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY (DEFICIT)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNLS PAYADIC.......covvieieteiiieteieteteiet ettt ettt ettt ese et et e st et e s e st et e s et et e s et et ese e ebenensesesesesenen $ 79.7
Accruals and other current Habilities.............coeeiiiiiininiiiiirr e 90.8
Deferred revenue 28.6
Current portion of long-term deb 5.0
Short-term borrowings 6.2
TOtal CUITENE HADIIHES .......vcvvvtcitiiiieieicici ittt bbbttt 210.3
Long-term debt, 1eSS CUITENE POTTION.......eueuirieriietesiietetirieteesteteit ettt sttt et ese et et besesesse s ebeseneesesenes 597.1
POISIONS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt bt b et h etk et h et h et bt s et b sttt s et bt sttt eben 82.5
Deferred income taxes 22.4
Deferred revenue.... 17.3
Other long-term liabilities.. 42.5
TOtAl THADIIIIES. ...ttt sttt 972.1
STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY (DEFICIT):
Common stock, par value $1.00 per share, 12,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding............... -
Paid-In CAPIAL .....cetiiiieiciiietc ettt 251.6
Accumulated deficit. (140.0)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss.... (28.0)
Total stockholder’s equity (deficit).... 83.6
NONCONIOING TNETESL. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b ettt eae bt eae e nne 6.5
Total @QUILY (AETICIE)....eveuirveririeietiiriet ettt ebene 90.1
Total liabilities and EQUILY.......cccoueuirieieiirieiiieicetret ettt $ 1,062.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions)

Year Ended
March 31

2016

Net sales......... . . . . . . . . $

Cost of'sales, excluding depreciation.........

Selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding depreciation and
amortization...

Depreciation and amortization
Restructuring expense.......... . . , . et

Management fees

860.8
4532

204.1
56.4
5.6
4.6

Operating income (loss) RO

Other expense (income):

Interest expense, net......

Other expense, net et aees

136.9

373
0.6

Income (loss) before income taxes..... . s

Income tax (benefit) expense. RN

99.0
(33.6)

Consolidated net income (loss)....

Less: net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest.....

132.6
0.8

Net income (loss) attributable to controlling interest.......... . . $

131.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in millions)

Year Ended
March 31
2016
Net income (loss) vttt $ 132.6
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax.....

Foreign currency translation adjustments . . ettt 8.2)
Defined benefit pension plan......... . . . et

Prior service cost adjustment arising during period........ » » -

Net actuarial gain (loss) adjustment arising during period..........ccocceveureereeriernennee. 7.6

Defined benefit pension plan, net . . e 7.6

Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax..... 0.6)

Income tax expense related to components of other comprehensive income............c.c........ -

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax. 0.6)

Comprehensive income (loss)....... . 132.0

Less: comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interest..........cccocveeerceenee. 0.1)

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to controlling interest..................cccccccoeencee. $ 132.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Foreign currency
adjustment

SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY (DEFICIT)

translation

Defined benefit pension plan
adjustment, net of tax of
$0.0 million......ccooevviviiniienn.

Balance at March 31, 2016....................ccccooiiieninn.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

(in millions)

Total

Paid-in Accumulate Accumulated Other Stockholder’s Noncontrolling Total Equity

Common Stock Capital Deficit Comprehensive Loss Equity (Deficit) Interest (Deficit)
S — 3 2516 S (271.8) § (283) § 485)  § 70 $ (41.5)
- - - - - 0.4) 0.4)
- - 131.8 - 131.8 0.8 132.6
- - - (7.3) (7.3) 0.9) 8.2)
- - - 7.6 7.6 - 7.6
$ — 2516 § (140.0) $ (28.0) $ 83.6 $ 65 § 90.1




SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

Year Ended
March 31
2016
Operating activities:
Consolidated net income (loss). $ 132.6
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amOTtIZAtION  ........eiiuiiiiiiiiii ittt ettt e ettt et et e et e et eeieeeeines 56.4
Amortization of deferred financing costs and original issue diSCOUNTS..........eevuiiriiiiriiiniiiiiiieieceeceieee 3.2
Deferred income taxes (40.0)
Loss on divestiture of business ... -
Loss on equity investment write down. -
Non-cash loss (gain) on foreign Currency tranSACIONS .........c.eeuerteerterrierieeierieeiesieere e sieeeesteeresneeeeenees 0.4
Other NON-CASH (ZAIN) L0SS ....eiutiiiietieiieet ittt ettt ettt b et b e e b e e s e st entesbeebeeneeeeenne (0.3)
Changes in assets and liabilities used in operations, net of effects of acquisitions and divestitures:
Trade accounts receivable. (15.2)
Inventories 33
Prepayments and Other CUTTENT @SSELS .......ei.eiiuiriiriiitirtiete ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et seeenees (1.9)
Accounts payable, accruals and other current Habilities ...........coeoveriiiiiiiininiiniii e (25.2)
Deferred revenue less deferred costs. (23.8)
Other non-current assets & liabilities.... (10.9)
Net cash provided by operating activities 78.6
Investing activities:
Expenditures for property, plant and equUIPMENt, NEt .........coeouiiiiiiiiiiiiieriee et (34.3)
Purchases 0f INtangible @SSES.......co.uiiruiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt ettt (L.5)
SOFtWAre deVEIOPIMENT COSES ..u.viiiuiiiriiiiiiiiiit ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e e e st e e e eseeeebeeeanes (35.1)
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired 9.8)
Proceeds from sale of business -
Proceeds from sale of assets 0.2
(Purchase) / sale 0f ShOrt-term IMVESIMENTS ......cc.irviriiiiiitiete ittt 8.1)
Net cash used in inVesting aCtiVIties ...........ocooiiiiiiiiiiiicc e (88.6)
Financing activities:
Receipts / (payments) on short-term bOITOWINES, NMEt.......cc.ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee e 0.7
Payments on debt. (5.3)
Payments of contingent consideration . -
Dividend paid to Joint Venture ........... 0.4)
Net cash used in financing activities (5.0)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii (1.9)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents............................. (16.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.....................cooiiii 63.3
Cash and cash equivalents at end of Year ..............coociiiiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 46.4
Supplemental disclosures of cash flows:
Cash paid during the period for:
LTS L AN 1T SRR $ 34.8
Income taxes, NEt OF TEIUNAS....c..iiiiiiiiiieiie ettt e be e e tee st e e beeesaeenteeenees $ 4.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Sensus Worldwide Limited (the “Company”), is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sensus Worldwide Holdings Limited, together with its subsidiaries, is a
leading, global technology provider of advanced utility infrastructure solutions and services. The Company delivers communications, metering,
measurement, control and analysis technology that enables companies to more effectively use their distribution networks for the delivery of resources such
as water, electricity and natural gas. In addition, the Company produces pipe joining and repair products for water and natural gas utilities and is a supplier
of precision-manufactured thin-wall, low-porosity aluminum die castings.

The Company was formed on December 18, 2003 through the acquisition of the metering systems and certain other businesses of Invensys plc
(“Invensys”).
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Basis of Presentation and Preparation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly and majority owned subsidiaries. Investments in entities
in which the Company exercises significant influence, but does not control, are accounted for using the equity method. All intercompany transactions and
accounts have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires management to make
estimates and assumptions. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Highly liquid investments with original maturity dates of three months or less are classified as cash equivalents.

Short-term investments

As of March 31,2016, the Company had $9.2 million invested in a bank certificate of deposit with a maturity of less than one year.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable and short-term investments. The Company deposits cash and cash equivalents with high-quality financial institutions. The Company has
deposits in accounts that are federally insured up to prescribed limits. Cash balances may exceed these limits at any given time.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded for invoices issued to customers in accordance with contractual arrangements. Credit is extended by the Company
based upon an evaluation of the customer’s financial position, and collateral generally is not required. The Company provides an allowance for doubtful
accounts equal to estimated losses that will be incurred in the collection of receivables. Historically these losses have not been significant and have been
within the range of management’s expectations. Estimated losses are based on historical collection experience as well as a review by management of the
current status of all receivables. Uncollectible receivables are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts when approved by management after
all collection efforts have been exhausted.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method, net of allowance. Market is determined on the basis of
estimated realizable values.



SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the asset. Leasehold improvements and replacements are capitalized to the extent that they increase the useful economic life or
increase the expected economic benefit of the underlying asset and amortized using the straight line method over the shorter of the lease term or economic
useful life. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to expense as incurred. In fiscal 2016, $22.4 million of depreciation expense was recorded in
the consolidated statements of operations.

Software Development Costs

Software development costs are expensed until technological feasibility is established at which point the costs of producing software products,
including coding, testing and design are capitalized in other long-term assets on the consolidated balance sheets. Capitalization ceases when the products
are available for sale to customers, and amortization begins when the products are ready for general release. Software development costs are amortized using
the straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the software which is estimated at three years. In fiscal 2016, $20.3 million of related
amortization expense was recorded in the consolidated statements of operations. Unamortized costs at March 31,2016 was $51.0 million.

A net realizability test is performed on a product-by-product basis annually or when a triggering event occurs to ensure that the asset value has not
been impaired. The unamortized capitalized costs did not exceed the net realizable value as of March 31,2016, and as such, there was no impairment.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at fair value on the date of acquisition. Distributor and marketing relationships, developed technology, tradenames, non-
competition agreements, patents, and FCC licenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Certain tradenames are assumed to
have indefinite lives and are not amortized. In fiscal 2016, related amortization expense of $13.7 million was recorded in the consolidated statements of
operations.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid by the Company for certain acquisitions over the fair value of the net assets acquired. The
Company evaluates goodwill at each fiscal year end and also at any other date when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount.

The Company uses a “qualitative assessment” option or “step zero” to assess goodwill impairment. The Company first assesses whether it is “more
likely than not” that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If the answer is no, then the fair value of the reporting unit does not
need to be measured, and step one and step two, as explained below, are bypassed. In assessing the fair value of a reporting unit, which is based on the nature
of business and reporting unit’s current and expected financial performance, the Company uses a combination of factors such as industry and market
conditions, overall financial performance, internal forecasts and the entity and reporting unit specific events. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the
Company’s qualitative assessment resulted in a conclusion that there were no factors to indicate that the fair value of any reporting unit exceeded the
carrying and thus no impairment existed.

In addition, the Company assesses its tradenames for impairment using the same method as goodwill. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the
Company’s qualitative assessment resulted in a conclusion that there were no factors to indicate that the fair value of the Company’s tradenames exceeded
their carrying value and thus no impairment existed.

Deferred Financing Costs

The costs paid to lenders to obtain, re-finance or amend long-term financing are deferred and amortized using the effective interest method over the
term of the related debt. Deferred financing costs net of accumulated amortization are included in other long-term assets in the consolidated balance sheets
and the amortization expense



SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

is included in interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations. At March 31, 2016, deferred financing costs were $2.9 million. In fiscal 2016,
amortization expense of $2.6 million was recorded in the consolidated statements of operations.

In August 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued final guidance to ASU 2015-03, Interest — Imputation of Interest
(Subtopic 835-30) — Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs which simplifies the presentation of debt issuance costs by requiring debt issuance
costs to be presented as a deduction from the corresponding liability, which would make the presentation of debt issuance costs consistent with the
presentation of debt discounts or premiums. This guidance is effective for financial statements issued for years beginning after December 15, 2015, and
interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15,2016. The Company is currently assessing the impact that ASU 2015-03 will have on these
consolidated financial statements.

Long-term Investments

As of March 31,2016, the carrying value of the Company’s equity method investment was $14.8 million, which is recorded in other long-term assets
on the consolidated balance sheet. The Company’s share of gains of $0.3 million in fiscal 2016 is recorded in other expense, net, in the consolidated
statement of operations.

Restructuring

The Company’s liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity is recognized and measured initially at its fair value in the period in
which the liability is incurred, except for certain qualifying employee termination benefits. Severance and related charges are accrued at the date the
restructuring was approved by the Company’s Board of Directors based on an estimate of amounts that will be paid to affected employees in accordance
with GAAP.

Warranty

Product warranty reserves are established in the same period that revenue from the sale of the related products is recognized. The amounts of those
reserves are based on established terms and the Company’s estimate of the amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as of the
balance sheet date. Warranty reserves are reflected within accruals and other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial
statement basis and the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities using enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years when the temporary
differences are expected to reverse. The Company records a valuation allowance when it determines that it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a
deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not the tax position will be sustained on
examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.

The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such positions are then measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50%
likelihood of being realized upon settlement. The Company accrues interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense in the
consolidated statements of operations.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17 Income Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes (ASU 2015-17),
which eliminates the current requirement for organizations present deferred tax assets and liabilities as current and non-current in a classified balance sheet.
Instead, organizations will be required to classify all deferred tax assets and liabilities as non-current. ASU 2015-17 is effective for financial statements
issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact that ASU 2015-17 will have on these consolidated financial statements.



SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign Currency

The functional currencies of the Company’s foreign operations are the local currencies. Accordingly, assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign
operations are translated from functional currencies into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date while income and expenses are
translated at the weighted-average exchange rates for the period. Foreign currency translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive
(loss) income as a separate component of stockholder’s equity (deficit). The Company recognized $1.0 million of realized and unrealized foreign currency
losses in fiscal 2016 in the consolidated statements of operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company has various revenue recognition policies. For product related sales, the Company recognizes revenue according to the terms of sale,
primarily upon shipment or receipt by customers, once the sales price is fixed and determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Service related sales
are recognized over the requisite service period.

The Company also has long-term contracts with electric, water and gas utility customers for the deployment of Advanced Metering Infrastructure
(“AMI”) technology systems that contain multiple deliverables including hardware, software, services, and ongoing support over a period of time.

When a sale involves multiple deliverables, each deliverable is evaluated to determine the unit of accounting. The entire contract arrangement price is
then allocated to each unit of accounting based on the relative selling price. Revenue is recognized when the revenue recognition criteria for each unit of
accounting is met. When final acceptance of the product, system, or solution is required, revenue is deferred until all acceptance criteria have been met. Post
sale support and maintenance fees and hosting arrangement fees are recognized ratably over the life of the related service contract.

Deferred revenue and associated deferred costs result from long-term contracts whereby the Company has deployed metering infrastructure, shipped
product, and/or performed services but for which all revenue recognition criteria have not yet been met. Deferred revenue and related deferred costs are
shown separately in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are classified as current or long term based on the period such amounts are expected
to be recognized.

The Company records reductions to revenue for estimated commitments related to liquidated damages, contractual guarantees and rebate programs.
The Company also records reductions to revenue for expected future product returns based on the Company’s historical experience. Any cash incentives or
credits on future purchases are recorded as reductions of revenue, and the cost of free products and services are recorded as cost of sales..

In May 2014, the FASB and the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued their convergence standard on revenue recognition. This
guidance is effective for the Company beginning in fiscal year 2020, and the Company is currently assessing any impact the adoption this guidance will
have on these consolidated financial statements.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations as incurred, and were $6.4
million in fiscal 2016.

Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs are charged to expense in the consolidated statements of operations as incurred, and were $79.3 million in fiscal
2016.



SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company’s parent, Sensus Worldwide Holdings Limited, has stock options and share grants outstanding with certain key members of
management of the Company. These options and shares vest and become exercisable when there is a change in control, an initial public offering occurs or
certain service related terms are achieved. Options and shares are forfeited if employment is terminated. The Company recorded no compensation expense
for stock-based compensation in fiscal 2016.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The Company sponsors a funded U.S. and an unfunded German defined benefit pension plan. Pension benefits in Germany for salaried employees
generally are determined by statute based on years of credited service and average earnings. Pension benefits for the German plan for hourly employees
generally are based on specified benefit amounts and years of service. Germany does not require companies to fund defined benefit plans. The U.S. defined
benefit plan consists of only unionized hourly employees. Pension benefits for the U.S. plan are based on specified benefit amounts and years of service.

The Company recognizes a liability for the projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets or an asset for plan assets in excess of the projected
benefit obligation. The Company also recognizes the actuarial gains or losses and prior service costs or credits, if any, that arise during the period but that
are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax.

The Company’s policy isto fund its German and U.S. pension plans in conformity with the funding requirements of laws and governmental
regulations applicable in the respective country.
Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company classifies costs associated with shipping and handling activities within selling, general and administrative expenses and amounts billed
to customers as revenues in the consolidated statements of operations.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, short-term investments (Level 2) and trade payables approximated fair values as
of March 31, 2016 due to their short-term nature.

At March 31, 2016, the estimated fair value of the Company’s short-term borrowings and revolving loans approximate their carrying values due to
their short-term nature and variable-rate interest component. The estimated fair values of the Company’s First Lien Credit Agreement and Second Lien
Credit Agreement approximate their carrying values due to the variable-rate interest component. These fair values are calculated using the Level 2 inputs in

the fair value hierarchy.
3. ACQUISITIONS / DIVESTITURES

On November 18, 2015, the Company acquired Sentec for $9.8 million of cash consideration, net of cash acquired. As a result of the acquisition, the
Company recorded $8.6 million of patents in intangible assets in its consolidated balance sheet. Sentec is a research organization that develops electronics
and sensor technologies for utilities, meter and appliance manufacturers, and infrastructure provider. This acquisition expanded the Company’s global
engineering resources in emerging and transformational technologies, including those that support the Internet of Things (IoT).

4. INVENTORIES

Inventories, net of reserves are summarized as follows (in millions):

2016
Raw materials, parts and supplies... $ 327
Work in Process . . . . . 5.6
Finished GOOMS .....c.cuveiueuririiieiriceeiseeeiee et 17.9

Inventories, net . $ 56.2
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property, plant and equipment as of March 31 are summarized as follows (in millions):

Depreciable Lives 2016

Land, buildings and improvements . . . 13-50 years $ 47.5
Machinery and eqUipmMent ........coceveereeenerreerneerincrreerseeneenns 3-13 years 241.6
Construction in progress ........... et ees N/A 20.8
Total property, plant and equipment .........ccccveevererreeencrreecnnee 309.9
Less accumulated depreciation.. (203.6)
Property, plant and equipment, NEt .......ccceveveervererrrerrerrerrnnnns $ 106.3
6. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Changes to goodwill are summarized as follows (in millions):
Total
Balance as of March 31,2015
Goodwill . . . » » » 483.2
Accumulated impairment LOSSES ........cvweuveereeureerineineeireireereeeieseieneens (14.4)
$ 468.8
Sentec acquisition-related adjustment resulting from deferred tax liability 1.6
Balance as of March 31,2016
Goodwill " » » " » . 484.8
Accumulated impairment losses . . ettt (14.4)
$ 4704

The Company maintains a deferred tax liability related to the difference between the financial reporting basis and tax basis of the AMDS goodwill.

The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment test at the end of fiscal 2016 and determined that no impairment of goodwill existed as of
March 31, 2016.
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6. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET (continued)

Intangible assets as of March 31 are summarized as follows (in millions):

2016
Weighted Average
Amortization Accumulated
Periods Cost Amortization
Intangible assets not subject to
amortization:
Goodwill ....... . . § 4704 § -
Tradenames (indefinite lived) .......ccocoeune 248 —
4952 -
Intangible assets subject to amortization:
Distributor and marketing relationships... 22.7 years 180.5 (97.8)
Developed technology ......c.ccocovvecueuenee 11.9 years 283 (22.6)
Non-competition agreements n/a 0.5 0.5)
Patents.. . . 7.9 years 25.8 (14.4)
FCC iCENSES ovovrreererireeieirieereiesseeinns 12.2 years 21.7 (10.1)
Tradenames (definite lived) ......cccoeeee. 2.9 years 34 3.4)
260.2 (148.8)
Total goodwill and intangible assets ....... 755.4 (148.8)

Estimated amortization expense of intangible assets for each of the next five fiscal years is summarized as follows (in millions):

Years Ending March

31
2017 . SRR $ 14.4
2018 . . . . 14.4
2019 e ————— 11.5
2020 . . . . 10.1
2021 . . . . 10.0

7. RESTRUCTURING COSTS

The Company’s restructuring expenses primarily relate to rationalizing its water and heat meter product lines in Europe. Total restructuring expenses
are expected to approximate $34.7 million primarily related to employee exit costs and facility closure costs over the life of these programs. Restructuring
accruals are reflected within accruals and other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESTRUCTURING COSTS (continued)

Changes in restructuring accruals as of March 31 are summarized as follows (in millions):

2016
Balance at beginning of year .......... . . . $ 3.1

Accrual of new committed/announced programs ...........c.cccceeeeeerrerenene 5.6

Cash payments . . » N . (7.2)
Foreign currency translation adjustment....... 0.1

Balance at end of year........ .. .. .. . $ 1.6

Current portion ... . .. . .. . $ 0.9

Non-current portion ........... . . et 0.7
Total . . . . . $ 1.6

DEBT

The Company’s total indebtedness outstanding as of March 31 is summarized as follows (in millions):

2016
Capital Leases....... . . et $ 0.3
Short-term borrowings........ . ettt 6.2

First lien credit agreement (A) ....

Revolving Credit Facility ........ . . . -

Term loan (net of $0.4 original issue discount)
......... . . . . 452.1

Second lien credit agreement (net of $0.3 original issue
discount ) (B) . ettt 149.7

Total Debt vt 608.3
Less: Current portion ......... . . ettt eeaees (11.2)
Long-term debt ......... . . .. .. .. $ 597.1

(A) The First Lien Credit Agreement consists of a $100 million Revolving Credit Facility and a $475 million term loan. The Revolving Credit
Facility matures on May 9,2016 and bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.125%. The term loan matures on May 9, 2017 with quarterly payments of
principal of $1.2 million due through maturity and the remaining balance due upon maturity. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.25%
subject to a minimum LIBOR of 1.25%. As of March 31,2016, there were letters of credit pledged against the revolver totaling $4.3 million.

(B) The Second Lien Credit Agreement consists of a $150 million term loan, with the full amount of principal payable on May 9, 2018. The second
lien term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 7.25% subject to a minimum LIBOR of 1.25%.

Maturities of long-term debt for the years ending March 31 are summarized as follows (in millions):

2017 . . . . 11.2
2018 . . 447.8
2019 . 150.0
Total Debt Maturities ...... 609.0
Less Original issue diSCOUNtS ......ccceveveucveererceerrenenee 0.7)
Total Debt $ 608.3



SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. DEBT (continued)

The First Lien Credit and Second Lien Credit agreements contain certain covenants that are customarily restricted in such agreements. As of March
31,2016, the Company was in compliance with all of'its financial covenants.

On April 5, 2016, the Company completed its credit facility refinancing whereby proceeds were used to repay the outstanding first lien and second
lien term loans. See Note 16, “Subsequent Events”, for further details.

9.  WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS

Changes in product warranty reserves as of March 31 are summarized as follows (in millions):

2016
Balance at beginning of year ........ . et $ 19.1
Warranty provision ........... et ees 10.2
Settlements made ... . . 6.7)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 0.1
Balance at end of year....... e eaees $ 22.7

10. LEASES

Operating Leases

The Company leases certain offices, warchouses, manufacturing facilities, automobiles, and equipment. Generally, these leases carry renewal
provisions. The Company recognizes rent expense for operating leases as incurred. Certain operating leases include rent escalation clauses, and the rent
expense is recognized on a straight- line basis over the applicable lease term. Rent expense for operating leases was $6.7 million for the year ended March
31,2016.

Future minimum lease payments, by fiscal year and in the aggregate, under operating leases as of March 31, 2016 are summarized as follows (in
millions):

....... 4.8
....... 43
....... 3.0
........ 2.5
. . et ees 1.5
Thereafter. . . et esaees 1.6
Total ... $ 17.7

Capital Leases

The Company leased certain equipment classified as capital leases beginning in fiscal 2014. As of March 31, 2016, the gross amount of assets
recorded under capital leases was $1.7 million and the accumulated amortization thereon was $1.4 million, recorded within property, plant and equipment,
net in the consolidated balance sheet.
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10. LEASES (continued)
Future minimum lease payments, by fiscal year and in the aggregate, under capital leases and the present value of minimum lease payments as of
March 31,2016 are summarized as follows (in millions):

2017. » . » . . $ 0.2
2018. . . 0.1
Present value of minimum lease payments (A) .....c.ccoveeveerennee 03

(A) The Company has recorded $0.2 million and $0.1 million in current portion of long-term debt and long- term debt, less, current portion,
respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet at March 31,2016

11. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined Benefit Plans

The net projected benefit obligation and its components as of March 31 are summarized as follows (in millions):

German Pension Plan U.S. Pension Plan
2016 2016
Benefit obligation at end of year .........cococovvrvunnee. $ 80.5 $ 13.2
Fair value of plan assets at end of year .......c.......... N/A 8.6
Underfunded status at end of year..........ccccvuueenee. 80.5 4.6
Employer contributions .........cceeeveeveenceencrneennce N/A 0.5
Benefits paid on benefit obligation 2.4) 0.3)
Liability on balance sheet consists of:
Current pension Hability ........cccocercerrrrerrrrrennne $ 26 S 0.0
Long-term pension liability 77.9 4.6
Liability on balance sheet . cereeeieeaeiaeen $ 80.5 $ 4.6
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Actuarial loss ...... $ 284 § 32
Unrecognized prior S€rvice Cost ... 1.5 0.2
Total in accumulated other comprehensive loss $ 299 § 3.4

The significant actuarial weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for the benefit plans for the years ended March 31
are as follows:

German Pension Plan U.S. Pension Plan
2016 2016
Discount rate ........ccoeceuvveeeeerincrerennenee 1.94 % 3.85 %
Rate of compensation increase 2.25 % N/A
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Expected benefit payments under the Company’s German and U.S. pension benefit plans are summarized as follows (in millions):

Germany U.S
2017 . . . . . 2.6 04
2018 . . » . » . 2.6 0.5
2019. . . 2.8 0.6
2020 . . . . 2.8 0.6
2021 . » . . . » 2.9 0.7
Five years, collectively, thereafter . s 15.6 43

The Company makes contributions to its U.S. pension plan in accordance with funding as required by law.
Contributions are anticipated to approximate $0.3 million during fiscal 2017.

The accumulated benefit obligation as of March 31,2016 is $79.5 million for the German plan and $13.2 million for the U.S. plan.

The Company recorded net periodic benefit costs of $5.9 million and $0.9 million for the German plan and
U.S. plan, respectively, for the fiscal year ended March 31,2016.

As of March 31, 2016, other changes recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss includes ($4.5) million and $0.3 million of net actuarial
(gains)/losses, $0.1 million and ($0.1) million of amortization of prior service costs and ($3.1) million and ($0.3) million of amortization of net
(gains)/losses for the German plan and U.S. plan, respectively.

Net periodic benefit costs for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017 are projected to approximate $5.2 million and $0.9 million for the German plan
and U.S. plan, respectively. This amount consists of $2.3 million and $0.3 million of amortization of net (gains)/losses of $0.4 million and $0.1 million of
amortization of prior service costs for the German plan and U.S. plan, respectively.

The significant actuarial weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the benefit plans for the years ended March 31
are as follows:

German Pension Plan U.S. Pension Plan
2016 2016
Discount rate . . 1.94% 3.75%
Rate of compensation increase ........... 2.25% N/A
Expected rate of return on plan assets N/A 6.75%

The Company’s investment strategy is to build an efficient, well-diversified portfolio based on a long-term strategic outlook of the investment
markets. The investment markets outlook utilizes both historical-based and forward-looking return forecasts to establish future return expectations for
various asset classes. These return expectations are used to develop a core asset allocation based on the specific needs of the plan. The target asset
allocation, in the table below, utilizes multiple investment managers to maximize the plan’s return while minimizing risk.
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11. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Target
Allocation Allocation at March 31,2016
Separate Accounts:
Fixed income . . . 45 % 42 %
Large U.S. equity ..ccocoveeeveevecincrneeircinnnees 9 10
Balanced / Asset Allocation ..........c.c....... 5 5
Mutual Funds:
International eqUIty ......cccceerveveerririceennne 18 17
Small/Mid U.S. eqUity ..c.ccoeeveerrerrererninnns
Fixed Income . . 5 6
Balanced / Asset Allocation ..................... 5 6
Large U.S. equity . . 5 5
Total .. . .. 100 % 100 %

The actual asset allocations of the plans approximate the target asset allocations, which are set on an individual plan basis by the boards of trustees.
They are the result of the individual plans’ risk assessments. The expected rate of return on plan assets was developed as a weighted average rate based on
the target allocation of the plan and the long-term capital market assumptions.

The table below presents information about our plan assets measured and recorded at fair value as of March 31 and indicates the fair value of hierarchy
of'the inputs utilized by the Company to determine the fair values.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e., an exit price). There is a fair value hierarchy that categorizes and prioritizes the inputs used to estimate fair value
into three levels based upon their observability. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows:

* Level | inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
e Level 2 inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2

inputs include quoted prices (in non-active markets or in active markets for similar assets or liabilities), inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable, and inputs that are not directly observable, but that are corroborated by observable market data.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs shall be used to the extent that observable inputs are not
available, allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for an asset or liability.

Transfers between fair value hierarchy levels are recognized at the end of the reporting period or at the time of change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. The Company has no Level 3 measurable assets.
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11. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Level 2 ** (Significant
Level 1 * (Quoted prices  other inputs including

in active markets) daily pricing) Total
Investment option (in millions) 2016 2016 2016
Separate Accounts:
Fixed income $ - $ 36 $ 3.6
Large U.S. equity .... - 0.9 0.9
Balanced/Asset Allocation ... - 04 04
Mutual Funds:
International equity ........cccccocverievieniennennns 1.5 - 1.5
Small/Mid U.S. equity .... 0.8 - 0.8
Large U.S. equity 0.5 - 0.5
Fixed Income 0.5 - 0.5
Balanced/Asset Allocation ...........ccceeeee. 0.4 - 0.4
TOtAl v $ 3.7 $ 4.9 $ 8.6

* Level 1 investments represent mutual funds for which a quoted market price is available on an active market.

These investments will primarily hold stocks or bonds, or a combination of stocks and bonds.
Level 2 investments represent separate accounts that may invest in a mutual fund(s) or directly into securities, primarily stocks or bonds, or a combination of stocks and bonds.
For those that invest in a mutual fund(s), a publicly quoted price is used to determine the net asset value of the pooled separate accounts, which is not publicly quoted. For those
that invest directly in securities, the majority of the securities have observable Level 2 pricing inputs, including quoted prices for similar assets in active or non-active markets.
Most of the security prices were obtained from a pricing service, Interactive Data Corporation.

*ok

Defined-Contribution Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a certain defined contribution savings plan for eligible employees. Total expense related to the plan of $4.0 million for fiscal
2016, was recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.

12. INCOME TAXES

The components of the income tax expense (benefit) as of March 31 are summarized as follows (in millions):

2016

Current:

United States federal .. . $ 0.1

Non-U.S. ........ 53

United States state and local........cccocoeeeuevniecnnnnnnne 1.0
Total current . . ettt 6.4
Deferred:

United States federal .. . . (34.2)

Non-U.S........... . 0.2)

United States state and local.........cccoovceurvnicnnnenee (5.6)
Total deferred ........... . et (40.0)
Income tax expense .......... . . $ (33.6)

The primary adjustments between the income tax expense at the U.S federal statutory tax rate of 35% ($34.7 million) and the recorded income tax
benefit of $(33.6) million relates to the removal of a $62.7 million valuation allowance that was recorded against the Company’s U.S. deferred tax assets at
March 31,2015.
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12. INCOME TAXES (continued)

At March 31,2016 the Company had total deferred tax assets of approximately $162.0 million, primarily arising from net operating losses, book
reserves not deductible for tax, deferred revenue recognized for tax purposes, and various income tax credits. Also, the Company had total deferred tax
liabilities of approximately $87.3 million, primarily related to differences in the tax and net book values of intangible assets. In assessing the realizability of
deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, project future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in
making this assessment.

In part because we achieved three years of cumulative pretax income in the U.S. federal tax jurisdiction and in the UK., management determined that
there is sufficient positive evidence to conclude that it is more likely than not that additional deferred tax assets of $62.7 million in the U.S. and $1.6 million
in the UK are realizable in the fiscal year ended March 31,2016.

As a result of the above, the Company has a valuation allowance of $65.2 million against its net deferred tax assets for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2016 resulting in a net change in the valuation allowance of $(61.2) million.

At March 31,2016, the Company had U.S. federal NOL carryforwards of approximately $19.9 million, which begin to expire after fiscal 2031. At March
31,2016, the Company had state tax net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $84.2 million as well as foreign NOL carryforwards approximately of
$209.4 million, which will begin to expire after fiscal 2017. Of the total foreign NOL carryforwards, approximately $206.2 million, do not expire.
Approximately $123.0 million of the foreign NOLs that do not expire reside in Germany. Under current German income tax law, the utilization of NOL
carryforwards is limited to one million euros plus 60% of annual taxable income exceeding one million euros.

The Company had U.S. federal alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $4.1 million at March 31, 2016, which are available for use indefinitely.
Also, the Company had U.S. federal and state research and development tax credit carryforwards of $18.3 million at March 31, 2016, which will begin to
expire after the year ending March 31, 2026.

As of March 31, 2016, the Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations for the years ending March 31, 2014 through 2016, U.S. state
and local income tax examinations for the years ending March 31, 2012 through 2016 and foreign income tax examinations for generally those same years.
Unused U.S. federal NOLs and credit carryforwards from earlier years remain subject to examination. The Company is not presently under audit by the U.S.
Internal Revenue Service.

We generally do not provide income taxes on the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries because such earnings are intended to be reinvested
indefinitely to finance foreign business activities. Those additional foreign earnings could be subject to additional tax if remitted, or deemed remitted, as a
dividend; however, it is not practical to estimate the additional amount, if any, of taxes payable. Taxes are provided as necessary with respect to earnings that
are not permanently reinvested.

As of March 31, 2016, the Company recorded no charges for interest and penalties. For fiscal year 2016, the Company recognized no interest and
penalties in connection with tax matters in the consolidated statements of operations. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are
recognized as a component of the Company’s income tax provision. The Company is not expecting any significant changes to net unrecognized tax benefits
within the next 12 months. The total amount of net unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized in a future period, would affect the effective tax rate was
$1.4 million as of March 31,2016.
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13. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On December 18,2003, The Company entered into a management services agreement with The Jordan Company, L.P., an affiliate of the controlling
shareholder, for advisory and consulting services related to corporate management, finance, product strategy, investment, acquisitions and other matters
relating to the business of the Company. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company agreed to pay a fee equal to the greater of $2.0 million per year, or
2.5% of EBITDA (as defined in the Credit Agreement), plus out-of-pocket expenses. In fiscal 2016, the Company recorded expenses associated with these
fees of $4.6 million. This agreement will remain in effect until December 2016, at which time it will automatically renew for one year unless canceled by
either party.

In December 2004, the Company formed a joint venture in Algeria with a manufacturer of various types of meters and a water utility customer. The
Company’s customer, Algérienne Des Eaux (“ADE”), owns 15% of the joint venture. Sales to ADE in fiscal 2016 were approximately $6.7 million,
representing 68% of total sales in Algeria. Terms of these sales to ADE are unchanged from the arrangement prior to the formulation of the joint venture.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Workforce

Approximately 9.4% of the Company’s labor force in the Americas and Europe is covered by collective bargaining agreements as of March 31, 2016.
The Company’s facility in Uniontown, PA has a five-year agreement with the United Steel Workers of America that expires on February 24, 2018. The
Texarkana, AR facility has a three-year agreement with the United Steelworkers of America that expires on March 26,2017. The European operations have a
five-year agreement with ZZO OZ KOVO CHIRANA-PREMA in Slovakia that expires on December 31, 2020. Additionally, the German unionized
workforce that is represented by IG Metall has a current agreement that expires on December 31,2017.

Guarantees and Indemnifications

The Company has entered into various agreements that require letters of credit for financial assurance purposes. These letters of credit typically
provide a guarantee to the customer for future performance, which usually covers the installation phase of a contract and may on occasion cover the
operations and maintenance phase of outsourcing contracts. These letters of credit are available to fund the payment of such obligations. At March 31,2016
the Company had $4.3 million of letters of credit outstanding that had not been drawn upon with expiration dates ranging from one month to 12 months.

Contingencies

The Company is, from time to time, involved in various unresolved legal actions, administrative proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of its
business involving product liability, product warranty, property damage, insurance coverage, intellectual property and environmental matters. Although it
is not possible to predict with certainty the outcome of these unresolved legal actions or the range of possible loss or recovery, based upon current
information, management believes dispositions of these matters are not expected to have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations of
the Company.

The Company is subject to potential asserted and unasserted claims related to possible design defects in certain products. As of March 31,2016, the
Company recorded liabilities of $23.3 million and $19.1 million in accruals and other current liabilities and other long term liabilities, respectively, on the
consolidated balance sheets. These amounts are offset by an expected net inventory recovery of $2.1 million in inventory, net, on the consolidated balance
sheet.

During fiscal 2016, as a result of lower than expected failure rates, the Company reduced its liabilities by
$27.3 million. A corresponding reduction to cost of sales, excluding depreciation in the consolidated statement of operations of $27.3 million was
recognized to account for the change in estimate for these liabilities.
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Environmental Matters

The Company is aware of known contamination at certain of its United States facilities, as a result of historic releases of hazardous materials. The
former owner of these sites is investigating, remediating and monitoring these properties. The Company is obligated to reimburse the former owner for a
portion of cash paid on the remediation plus interest on cash paid at all sites. The Company is unable to estimate the amount of such costs at this time.
Based on information currently available, the Company believes that future environmental compliance expenditures will not have a material effect on its

financial position or results of operations, and has established allowances the Company believes are adequate to cover potential exposure to environmental
liabilities.

15. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income as of March 31 are summarized as follows (in millions):

Pension Benefit  Foreign Currency

Plans, Net of Tax Translation Total
Balance March 31,2015 ..o $ (43.8)$ 155 § (28.3)
Foreign currency translation adjustment - (7.3) (7.3)
Net actuarial gain adjustment .... 7.6 - 7.6
Prior service credit adjustment ............... - - -
Balance March 31,2016 ..o $ 36.2) 3 82 §$ (28.0)

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 5, 2016, the Company completed a refinancing of its debt by securing a new $700.0 million credit facility, comprised of a five-year $75.0
million senior secured first lien revolving credit facility, which matures in April 2021, and a seven-year $625.0 million senior secured first lien term loan,
which matures in April 2023. The revolving credit facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 5.0% (no minimum LIBOR) and the term loan bears interest at
LIBOR plus 5.5% subject to a minimum LIBOR of 1.0%. Proceeds from the new credit facility were used to repay the Company’s $452.5 million
outstanding first lien term loan that would have matured in May 2017 and $150.0 million second lien term loan that would have matured in May 2018.

The Company has reviewed subsequent events through June 22, 2016, which represents the date that the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited)
(in millions, except per share and share data)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash eqUIVAIEIES. .......c..oeiriiieiriieirieee ettt
SHOTt-tErM INVESTMEINLS .....eevietietiteieiiettete ettt ettt ettt eseeteebesseseeneeseesesbenseneeneenene
Accounts receivable:

Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2.8 and $3.0, respectively.

Inventories, net
Prepayments and Other CUITENE @SSELS.....c.vvveuirirreririereririeteietetetsteterteteseteseseseesesessesesesaeseeesenens
Deferred INCOME tAXES .....veveueeeieiietirieieieieet ettt ettt ettt ettt e ee st esesbesteteneeneeseesenneneane

Deferred costs

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Goodwill and intangible assets, net

DIEFEITEA COSES ..uvviriiiniiiteiirieteeet ettt ettt bttt ettt eb et e et neene
Other 10NG-1EIM ASSELS ......vviuiiieiiiieiititeitre ettt ettt sttt sttt s
TOTAL ASSEES .. veveveuireresieteteist ettt ettt ettt ettt b ettt b bt a bbb s sbene

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY (DEFICIT)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNLS PAYADIC ...ttt
Accruals and other current liabilities

Deferred revenue

Current portion of long-term debt
SHOTT-TEIM DOTTOWINGS ....evvvevieietiiirietisieteteistest ettt sttt sttt ettt st bese s ebenesseseneaes
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion
Pensions

DeEferred INCOME TAXES ....cveveverieieieriieieieteiete ettt sttt eseseetese st ese st esesesteseneesesenesseseneesenens
DIEfITEA TEVEIUC. ....c.cevviiiieiiieicitrtet ettt ettt
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13)
STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY:

Common stock, par value $1.00 per share, 12,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding
Paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit ...

Accumulated other cOmMPreneNSIVE 10SS ......covevevirieririiieiieieire et
Total stockholder’s EQUILY ..........cerieueeririciirieicirec et
NONCONOING ILEIESL ...ttt
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity....

September 30, March 31,
2016 2016

543 $ 46.4
10.5 9.2
106.1 114.8
63.2 56.2
15.1 16.0
27.8 31.9
0.4 5.0
277.4 279.5
106.9 106.3
599.2 606.6
3.8 -
71.8 66.8
1,059.1 $ 1,059.2
723§ 79.7
75.6 99.8
18.9 28.6
6.4 5.0
6.0 6.2
179.2 210.3
590.5 594.1
83.7 82.5
31.6 224
21.0 17.3
38.3 42.5
944.3 969.1
251.6 251.6
(115.2) (149.0)
(28.4) (28.0)
108.0 83.6
6.8 6.5
114.8 90.1
1,059.1 § 1,059.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)
(in millions)

Six Months Ended September 30,

2016 2015
Net sales.......... e ————— $ 463.1 $ 430.8
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation ......... SRR 256.2 236.7
Selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization
. 103.0 102.5
Depreciation and amortization 29.8 27.1
Restructuring expense ......... . . . . . 2.1 3.0
Management fees . . . . reeeeeereaeneas 1.7 21
Operating income .. . .. . .. 70.3 594
Other expense (income):
Interest expense, net ..... . . . vt 229 19.1
Loss on extinguishment of debt » » . 2.1 0.0
Other expense, net . 3.0 0.8)
Income before income taxes.......... . . . 423 41.1
Income tax expense ...... . . ettt eeaees 17.2 12.6
Consolidated net income ......... . . . . 25.1 28.5
Less: net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest..........cceoveveeeueuncne 0.3 0.4
Net income attributable to controlling interest $ 248  $ 28.1




The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)
(in millions)

Six Months Ended September 30,

2016 2015
Netincome .... . . s $ 251 $ 28.5
Other comprehensive loss, before tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........ccccoceveunerneeniennceriennees 04) (7.4)
Defined benefit pension plan
Prior service cost adjustment arising during period .........cccoeeeeueurenee. 0.0 0.0
Net actuarial gain (loss) adjustment arising during period .................. 0.0 0.0
Defined benefit pension plan, net . 0.0 0.0
Other comprehensive loss, before tax ........... . 0.4) (7.4)
Income tax expense related to components of other comprehensive income .. 0.0 0.0
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax s 0.4) 7.4)
Comprehensive income ........... s 24.7 21.1
Less: comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest 0.3 0.3)
Comprehensive income attributable to controlling interest ..................... $ 244 § 21.4




The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

SENSUS WORLDWIDE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(in millions)

Six Months Ended September 30,

2016 2015
Operating activities:
Consolidated NEt IMCOME ......o.iiviiiiiiiiiiiciiei ettt bbbttt ettt ettt es $ 251§ 28.5
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amoOTrtiZatiOn..........eoueeeuieiiieeie ettt ettt 29.8 27.1
Amortization of deferred financing costs and original issue discounts 2.1 1.6
Deferred income taxes .. 13.4 1.8
Loss on extinguishment of debt 2.1 0.0
Non-cash loss (gain) on foreign currency tranSactions ............cceeveervereeeruereerresienieenueseeneneens 1.8 (0.2)
Other NON-CASH ZAIN ....euiiiiiiiiitiite ettt b ettt ettt sb ettt sae e 0.2) (0.3)
Changes in assets and liabilities used in operations, net of effects of acquisitions and divestitures:
Trade accounts receivable.... 7.2 (4.6)
Inventories (7.4) 3.4
Prepayments and Other CUTTENT @SSELS ........ccuiriiriiriiriiiiiniieeeit ettt sttt 0.6 (0.3)
Accounts payable, accruals and other current Habilities ............cceecveviiiiininiiniiniiicccce (21.5) (16.7)
Deferred revenue less deferred costs. 4.4) (20.1)
Other non-current assets & liabilities. (11.2) (1.8)
Net cash provided by operating activities 37.4 18.4
Investing activities:
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment, Net ............ccceeririeririeiinieneeieseee e (12.0) (16.5)
Purchases Of iNtangiDIE ASSELS......c.eeuiriiiiiiiieitieiiesteet ettt (0.6) (0.9)
SOftWAre deVElOPMENT COSES ..e.vriutiriiiiiriiiniieteett ettt ettt ettt ettt et eneesreas (16.5) (16.1)
Proceeds from sale of assets 0.0 0.1
(Purchase) / sale of short-term investments (1.4) (8.1)
Net cash used in investing activities . (30.5) (41.5)
Financing activities:
Receipts / (payments) on short-term borrowings, Net.........c.eevveeriieriieeniieenieeniee e siee s 0.0 (0.3)
Proceeds from debt ISSUANCE. ......eiiuiiiiiiiii ittt ettt 606.3 0.0
Payments 01 debt.........ooiiiiiiii et (604.2) (3.3)
Net cash used in financing activities ..............ocoooiiiiiiiiiiii 2.1 (3.6)
Effect of exchange rate changes on Cash...........c.ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicec e (1.1) (1.4)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents............................ooii 7.9 (28.1)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. 46.4 63.3
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 543§ 35.2
Supplemental disclosures of cash flows:
Cash paid during the period for:
INEETESE, T .vvieieteeet ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e et e et e eae e e eaeeete et eeaeenseeaeeeseenseneeneeeseenneas $ 234§ 17.5
Income taxes, Net OF TEfUNAS....cc.eiiiiiiiiiiiiii e eae s $ 35§ 15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



1. BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Background

Sensus Worldwide Limited (the “Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sensus Worldwide Holdings Limited, together with its subsidiaries, is a
leading, global technology provider of advanced utility infrastructure solutions and services. The Company delivers communications, metering,
measurement, control and analysis technology that enables companies to more effectively use their distribution networks for the delivery of resources such
as water, electricity and natural gas. In addition, the Company produces pipe joining and repair products for water and natural gas utilities and is a supplier
of precision-manufactured thin-wall, low-porosity aluminum die castings.

The Company was formed on December 18, 2003 through the acquisition of the metering systems and certain other businesses of Invensys plc
(“Invensys”).

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated unaudited financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly and majority owned subsidiaries. Investments
in entities in which the Company exercises significant influence, but does not control, are accounted for using the equity method. All intercompany
transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

2. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Pronouncements Recently Adopted

In August 2015, the FASB issued final guidance to ASU 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) - Simplifying the Presentation of
Debt Issuance Costs which simplifies the presentation of debt issuance costs by requiring debt issuance costs to be presented as a deduction from the
corresponding liability, which would make the presentation of debt issuance costs consistent with the presentation of debt discounts or premiums. This
guidance is effective for financial statements issued for years beginning after December 15,2015, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15,2016. We elected to early adopt this guidance effective the first quarter of2016. Accordingly, $9 million and $3 million of debt issuance
cost, were reflected within long term debt as of September 30 and March 31,2016.

Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In October 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued guidance amending the accounting for income taxes. Under current
guidance the recognition of current and deferred income taxes for an intra-entity asset transfer is prohibited until the asset has been sold to an outside party.
The amended guidance eliminates the prohibition against immediate recognition of current and deferred income tax amounts associated with intraentity
transfers of assets other than inventory. This guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15,2017 with early adoption
permitted as of the beginning of an annual reporting period for which financial statements (interim or annual) have not been issued or made available for
issuance. The requirements of the amended guidance should be applied on a modified retrospective basis through a cumulative-effect adjustment directly
to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption. We are evaluating the impact of the guidance on our financial condition and results of
operations.

In June 2016, the FASB issued guidance amending the accounting for the impairment of financial instruments, including trade receivables. Under
current guidance, credit losses are recognized when the applicable losses are probable of occurring and this assessment is based on past events and current
conditions. The amended guidance eliminates the “probable” threshold and requires an entity to use a broader range of information, including forecast
information when estimating expected credit losses. Generally, this should result in a more timely recognition of credit losses. This guidance is effective for
interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019 with early adoption permitted for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15,
2018. The requirements of the amended guidance should be applied using a modified retrospective approach except for debt securities, which require a
prospective transition approach. We are evaluating the impact of the guidance on our financial condition and results of operations.

In May 2014, the FASB issued guidance on recognizing revenue from contracts with customers. The guidance outlines a single comprehensive model
to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-
specific guidance. The core principle of the model is that an entity recognizes revenue to portray the transfer of goods and services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard also expands
disclosure requirements regarding revenue recognition. This guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2017 and may be applied retrospectively to each prior period presented or with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of initial application. Early
adoption is permitted for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,2016. We are evaluating the impact of the guidance on our
financial condition and results of operations.



3.  ACQUISITIONS

On November 18, 2015, the Company acquired Sentec for $9.8 million of cash consideration, net of cash acquired. As a result of the acquisition, the
Company recorded $8.6 million of patents in intangible assets in its March 31, 2016 consolidated balance sheet. Sentec is a research organization that
develops electronics and sensor technologies for utilities, meter and appliance manufacturers, and infrastructure provider. This acquisition expanded the
Company’s global engineering resources in emerging and transformational technologies, including those that support the Internet of Things (IoT).

4. INVENTORIES,NET

Inventories, net of reserves are summarized as follows (in millions):

September 30, March 31,
2016 2016
Raw materials, parts and SUPPLIES.......c.cevererrrrrerrerrrisierenenes $ 350 $ 32.7
Work in Process. . . . . 6.3 5.6
Finished Goods .......... . 219 17.9
Inventories, net . .. . .. .. $ 632 $ 56.2
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property, plant and equipment are summarized as follows (in millions):
Depreciable September 30, March 31,
Lives 2016 2016
Land, buildings and improvements . » . 13-50 years $ 472 $ 47.5
Machinery and equipment .. ettt eaes 3-13 years 2453 241.6
Construction in progress .......... . N/A 253 20.8
Total property, plant and equipment .........coccevveveeeererccrerrenenee 317.8 309.9
Less accumulated depreciation. . . (210.9) (203.6)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 1069 § 106.3
6. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Changes to goodwill are summarized as follows (in millions):
Balance as of March 31,2016
Goodwill ..... » » 484.8
Accumulated impairment losses ..... . ettt eaees (14.4)
$ 470.4
Balance as of September 30,2016
Goodwill ..... » » " » 484.8
Accumulated impairment losses ..... . ettt eaees (14.4)
$ 470.4

The Company maintains a deferred tax liability related to the difference between the financial reporting basis and tax basis of the AMDS goodwill.



Intangible assets are summarized as follows (in millions):

September 30. March 31,
2016 2016
Weighted Average Accumulated Accumulated
Amortization Periods Cost Amortization Cost Amortization
Intangible assets not subject to
amortization:
Goodwill . . . . $ 4704 $ — 3 4704 $ —
Tradenames (indefinite lived) ................ 248 — 24.8 —
$ 4952 § — 3 4952 § —
Intangible assets subject to amortization:
Distributor and marketing relationships... 22.7 years $ 1803 $ (101.7) $ 180.5 $ (97.8)
Developed technology .......cccccveeeveennee. 11.9 years 283 (23.8) 283 (22.6)
Non-competition agreements .................. n/a 0.5 0.5) 0.5 0.5)
Patents...... . . 7.9 years 25.0 (15.5) 25.8 (14.4)
FCC licenses » » . 12.2 years 224 (11.0) 21.7 (10.1)
Tradenames (definite lived) .........c.......... 2.9 years 34 (3.4) 34 34
2599 (155.9) 260.2 (148.8)
Total goodwill and intangible assets ....... $ 755.1 $ (1559) $ 7554 $ (148.8)

Amortization expense related to finite-lived intangible assets was $7.2 million and $6.6 million for the six months ended September 30,2016 and
2015, respectively.

7.  RESTRUCTURING COSTS
The Company’s restructuring expenses primarily relate to rationalizing its water and heat meter product lines in Europe. Total restructuring expenses
are expected to be approximate $34.7 million primarily related to employee exit costs and facility closure costs over the life of these programs.

Restructuring accruals are reflected within accruals and other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

Changes in restructuring accruals are summarized as follows (in millions):

September 30, September 30,
2016 2015
Balance at March 31...... . " . $ 16 $ 3.1
Accrual of new committed/announced programs ...........coccoevevcecrrerenenee 2.1 29
Cash payments . . . . . . 2.9) (4.0)
Foreign currency translation adjustment...... . . — 0.1
Balance at September 30........ s 0.8 2.1
Current portion .... et 0.7 1.5
Non-current portion ........... . . ettt ees 0.1 0.6
Total . . . . . $ 08 § 2.1




8. DEBT

The Company’s total indebtedness outstanding is summarized as follows (in millions):

September 30, March 31,
2016 2016

Capital Leases....... ettt bttt $ 0.1 § 0.3
Short-term borrowings........ . . . . 6.0 6.2
First lien credit agreement (A, C)

Revolving Credit Facility ........ . . s — —

Term loan (net of $17.7 and $0.4 original issue discount, September 2016 and March

2016, reSpectively) cocrcneeeeereereeecreeeenes 605.8 452.1

Second lien credit agreement (net of $0.3 original issue

discount March 2016) (B)........ . . . 0.0 149.7

Less Deferred Financing Cost . . ettt 9.0)
Total Debt . . » » ettt 602.9 608.3
Less: Current portion ......... » » . . (12.4) (11.2)
Long-term debt ......... . . e $ 590.5 $ 597.1

(A) On April 5,2016, the Company completed a refinancing of'its debt by securing a new $700.0 million credit facility, comprised of a five-year $75.0
million senior secured first lien revolving credit facility, which matures in April 2021, and a seven-year $625.0 million senior secured first lien
term loan, which matures in April 2023. The revolving credit facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 5.0% (no minimum LIBOR) and the term loan
bears interest at LIBOR plus 5.5% subject to a minimum LIBOR of 1.0%. Proceeds from the new credit facility were used to repay the Company’s
$452.5 million outstanding first lien term loan that would have matured in May 2017 and $150.0 million second lien term loan that would have
matured in May 2018. As of September 30, 2016, there were letters of credit pledged against the revolver totaling $4.2 million.

(B) The Second Lien Credit Agreement consists of a $150 million term loan, with the full amount of principal payable on May 9, 2018. The second
lien term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 7.25% subject to a minimum LIBOR of 1.25%.

(C) The First Lien Credit Agreement consists of a $100 million Revolving Credit Facility and a $475 million term loan. The Revolving Credit Facility
matured on May 9, 2016 and was bearing interest at LIBOR plus 3.125%. The term loan matures on May 9, 2017 with quarterly payments of
principal of $1.2 million due through maturity and the remaining balance due upon maturity. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.25%
subject to a minimum LIBOR of 1.25%. As of March 31, 2016, there were letters of credit pledged against the revolver totaling $4.3 million. The
balance of'this loan was paid in full in April 2016.

The First Lien Credit and Second Lien Credit agreements contain certain covenants that are customarily restricted in such agreements. As of
September 30,2016 and March 31, 2016, the Company was in compliance with all of'its financial covenants.

9.  WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS

Changes in product warranty reserves are summarized as follows (in millions):

September 30, September 30,
2016 2015
Balance at March 31.... . . . . . $ 227§ 18.7
Warranty provision .......... » . . 4.5 2.9
Settlements made .... et ees 4.2) (3.0)
Foreign currency translation adjustment.... . . . 0.2) 0.1
Balance at September 30....... . . SR $ 228 § 18.7




10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The components of net periodic benefit cost of our defined benefit pension plans are as follows (in millions);

Six months ended September 30,

2016 2015
Domestic defined benefit pension plans:
Service cost . . . $ 03 $ 0.3
Interest cost . . . . 0.3 0.2
Expected return on plan assets .........ccceceveeeuennenee 0.3) 0.3)
Amortization of net prior service costs ................ 0.0 0.0
Amortization of net actuarial COsts ........cecveurennee 0.2 0.2
Net periodic benefit COSt ..vvrnrrnrinrrerrrirrierinns $ 05§ 0.4
International defined benefit pension plans:
Service cost . $ 05 $ 0.6
Interest cost . . . . 0.8 0.7
Expected return on plan assets .........ccceceeveeeueuenee — —
Amortization of net prior service costs . 0.2 0.2
Amortization of net actuarial 10SS .......ccocoeveurinnnee 1.2 1.5
Net periodic benefit COSt ..ovrnrrnrinrrerrrrrrieries $ 27 $ 3.0
Total net periodic benefit COSt ....oovvueureieurrerccinenne $ 32 8 34

We contributed $0.2 million and $0.3 million to our defined benefit plans during the six months ended September 30,2016 and 2015, respectively.
No additional contributions are expected during the remainder of2016.

11. INCOME TAXES

The income tax provision for the 6 months ended September 30,2016 was $17.2 million resulting in an effective tax rate of 40.6%, compared to
$12.6 million resulting in an effective tax rate of 30.7% for the same period in 2015. The effective tax rate was higher than the United States federal statutory
rate for the six months ended September 30,2016 and 2015 primarily due to the geographic mix of earnings yielding different net effective rate results and
state income taxes.

12. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On December 18, 2003, The Company entered into a management services agreement with The Jordan Company, L.P., an affiliate of the controlling
shareholder, for advisory and consulting services related to corporate management, finance, product strategy, investment, acquisitions and other matters
relating to the business of the Company. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company agreed to pay a fee equal to the greater of $2.0 million per year, or
2.5% of EBITDA (as defined in the First Lien Credit Agreement), plus out-of-pocket expenses. For the six months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, the
Company recorded expenses associated with these fees of $1.7 million and $2.1 million, respectively.

In December 2004, the Company formed a joint venture in Algeria with a manufacturer of various types of meters and a water utility customer. The
Company’s customer, Algérienne Des Eaux (“ADE”), owns 15% of the joint venture. For the six months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, sales to ADE
were approximately $3.4 million and $2.8 million, respectively, representing 74% and 52% of'total sales in Algeria, respectively. Terms of these sales to ADE
are unchanged from the arrangement prior to the formulation of the joint venture.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Workforce



Approximately 8.9% of the Company’s labor force in the Americas and Europe is covered by collective bargaining agreements as of September 30,
2016. The Company’s facility in Uniontown, PA has a five-year agreement with the United Steel Workers of America that expires on February 24,2018. The
Texarkana, AR facility has a three-year agreement with the United Steelworkers of America that expires on March 26,2017. The European operations have a
five-year agreement with ZZO OZ KOVO CHIRANA-PREMA in Slovakia that expires on December 31, 2020. Additionally, the German unionized
workforce that is represented by IG Metall has a current agreement that expires on December 31,2017.

Guarantees and Indemnifications

The Company has entered into various agreements that require letters of credit for financial assurance purposes. These letters of credit typically
provide a guarantee to the customer for future performance, which usually covers the installation phase of a contract and may on occasion cover the
operations and maintenance phase of outsourcing contracts. These letters of credit are available to fund the payment of such obligations. At September 30,
2016 and March 31, 2016, the Company had $4.2 million and $4.3 million, respectively, letters of credit outstanding, that had not been drawn upon with
expiration dates ranging from one month to 12 months.

Contingencies

The Company is, from time to time, involved in various unresolved legal actions, administrative proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of its
business involving product liability, product warranty, property damage, insurance coverage, intellectual property and environmental matters. Although it
is not possible to predict with certainty the outcome of these unresolved legal actions or the range of possible loss or recovery, based upon current
information, management believes dispositions of these matters are not expected to have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations of
the Company.

The Company is subject to potential asserted and unasserted claims related to possible design defects in certain products. As of September 30, 2016,
the Company recorded liabilities of $17.4 million and $15.7 million in accruals and other current liabilities and other long term liabilities, respectively, on
the consolidated balance sheets. As of March 31,2016, the Company recorded liabilities of $23.3 million and $19.1 million in accruals and other current
liabilities and other long term liabilities, respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets. These amounts are offset by an expected net inventory recovery
of $2.1 million in inventories, net, on the consolidated balance sheet.

Environmental Matters

The Company is aware of known contamination at certain of its United States facilities, as a result of historic releases of hazardous materials. The
former owner of these sites is investigating, remediating and monitoring these properties. The Company is obligated to reimburse the former owner for a
portion of cash paid on the remediation plus interest on cash paid at all sites. The Company is unable to estimate the amount of such costs at this time.
Based on information currently available, the Company believes that future environmental compliance expenditures will not have a material effect on its
financial position or results of operations, and has established allowances the Company believes are adequate to cover potential exposure to environmental
liabilities.

14. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income are summarized as follows (in millions):

Pension Benefit Foreign Currency

Plans, Net of Tax Translation Total
Balance April 1,2016 ..c.ococveevicencnnnee $ 362)$ 82 § (28.0)
Foreign currency translation adjustment — 0.4) 0.4)
Net actuarial gain adjustment ................. — — —
Prior service credit adjustment ............... — — —
Balance September 30,2016 .................... $ (36.2)$ 78 % (28.4)

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 15,2016, the Company agreed to be acquired and entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with Xylem Inc. The purchase price was
agreed at $1.7 billion, net of cash acquired. The acquisition of the Company was completed on October 31,2016 pursuant to the terms of the Share Purchase
Agreement and an Amendment to the Share Purchase Agreement dated as of October 31,2016.

12



The Company has reviewed subsequent events through January 10, 2017, which represents the date that the financial statements were available to be
issued.



Exhibit 99.3
XYLEM INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

On November 1,2016 (the “Acquisition Date”), all of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of Sensus Worldwide (other than Sensus Industries) (“Sensus”),)
were acquired by Xylem Inc. (the “Company” or "Xylem") and became wholly-owned subsidiaries of Xylem through the acquisition of 100% of Sensus’
outstanding equity interests by Xylem. The aggregate consideration paid in the acquisition was approximately $1.7 billion, net of cash acquired, subject to
certain adjustments as provided in the Purchase Agreement. The consideration was funded with a combination of cash on hand, proceeds from issuances
under the Company’s existing commercial paper program, borrowings under a new euro-denominated term loan and the issuance of $500 million aggregate
principal amount 0f 3.250% Senior Notes due 2026 and $400 million aggregate principal amount of4.375% Senior Notes due 2046.

The attached unaudited proforma condensed combined balance sheet assumes that the acquisition was completed on September 30, 2016. The unaudited
proforma condensed combined income statements for the fiscal year ended December 31,2015 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 assume the
acquisition was completed on January 1,2015 and reflect the most recent full year 2015 Xylem operating results and full year fiscal 2016 Sensus operating
results, derived from the audited financial statements, and the nine months ended September 30, 2016 financial statements, respectively. These operating
results for different annual fiscal year periods are being appropriately combined for proforma purposes since the fiscal year-end periods are withing 93 days of
each other, in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) guidance.

The unaudited proforma condensed combined financial statements were prepared in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC and should not be
considered indicative of the financial position or results of operations that would have occurred if the acquisition had been completed on the dates indicated,
nor are they indicative of the future financial position or results of operations of Xylem and Sensus following completion of the acquisition. In accordance
with the rules and regulations of the SEC, the proforma condensed combined statements of income do not reflect the potential realization of cost savings, or
restructuring, or other costs relating to the integration of Sensus, nor do they include any other items not expected to have a continuing impact on the
combined results of the two companies. The historical consolidated financial information of Xylem and Sensus has been adjusted in the unaudited proforma
condensed combined financial statements to give effect to proforma events that are (1) directly attributable to the acquisition, (2) factually supportable, and
(3) with respect to the statement of income, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results.

The unaudited proforma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes thereto. In addition, the
unaudited proforma condensed combined financial information was based on, and should be read in conjunction with, the:

* Separate historical financial statements of Xylem as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015 and the related notes included in Xylem’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,2015; and the historical financial statements for the quarter ended September 30, 2016, including
related notes, as filed on Xylem’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,2016.

* Separate historical financial statements of Sensus as of and for the fiscal year ended March 31,2016 and the related notes; and the historical financial
statements for the six months ended September 30,2016, including related notes, which are attached as Exhibit 99.1 and Exhibit 99.2, respectively, to this
Form 8-K/A.

The unaudited proforma condensed combined financial information has been prepared using the proforma effects of the acquisition method of accounting
under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 805, “Business Combinations” which requires, among other things, that assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values, with limited exceptions. Transaction costs are not included as a component of the consideration
transferred and are expensed as incurred. The excess of the consideration transferred over the estimated amounts of identifiable assets and liabilities of Sensus
have been allocated to goodwill on a proforma basis as of September 30, 2016. The process for estimating fair values in many cases requires the use of
significant estimates and assumptions, including the estimation of future cash flows, the development of appropriate discount rates and the estimation of
costs. The Company has developed its fair value estimates from a market participant perspective which could materially differ from entity specific
assumptions. The Company’s judgments used in determining these estimates may materially impact the Company’s financial position or results from
operations.

Additionally, given the use of the historical financial statements of Sensus for the fiscal year ended March 31,2016 and for the twelve month proforma
income statements shown herein, the three months ended March 31, 2016 is included in both the

1



proforma income statement for the year ended December 31,2015 as well as the proforma income statement for the nine months ended September 30,2016.
Any significant, unusual activity reflected in this period has been noted in the footnotes to the proforma financial statements.

The finalization of the Company’s purchase accounting assessment may result in changes in the valuation of assets and liabilities acquired which could be
material. The Company will finalize the purchase price allocation as soon as practicable within the measurement period in accordance with ASC Topic 805-
10, “Business Combinations - Overall” (“ASC 805-10"), but in no event later than one year following the Acquisition Date.



Xylem Inc.

Unaudited ProForma Condensed Combined Income Statements

For the Year Ended

December 31,

2015 March 31,2016
Xylem Inc. Sensus ProForma Adjustments
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Revenue $ 3653 § 861 § (@)
Cost of revenue 2,249 500 (14)
Gross profit 1,404 361 7
Selling, general and administrative expenses 854 160 33
Research and development expenses 95 59 —
Restructuring charges 6 6 =

Operating income 449 136 (26)
Interest expense 55 37 3)
Other non-operating income (expense), net — 1 —
Gain from sale of business 9 — —

Income before taxes 403 98 (23)
Income tax expense (benefit) 63 (34) ®)

Net income 340 132 (15)
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 1.88

Diluted $ 1.87
Weighted average number of shares:

Basic 180.9

Diluted 181.7
Dividends declared per share $ 0.5632

6a

6¢

6d

6e

ProForma
Combined

4,507
2,735
1,772
1,047
154
12
559
89

1

9
478
21
457

2.53
2.51

180.9
181.7
0.5632

See the accompanying notes to the unaudited proforma condensed combined financial statements which are an integral part of these financial

statements.



Xylem Inc.

Unaudited ProForma Condensed Combined Income Statements

For the Nine Months Ended September 30,2016

ProForma ProForma
Xylem Inc. Sensus Adjustments Combined

(in millions, except per share data)
Revenue $ 2,676 § 691 § 2) 6a 3,365
Cost of revenue 1,621 397 (12) 6b 2,006

Gross profit 1,055 294 10 1,359
Selling, general and administrative expenses 665 118 15  6c 798
Research and development expenses 75 48 — 123
Restructuring charges 18 3 — 21

Operating income 297 125 ) 417
Interest expense 50 36 (14) 6d 72
Other non-operating income (expense), net 3 — — 3

Income before taxes 250 89 9 348
Income tax expense (benefit) 40 37) 1 6e 4

Net income $ 210 $ 126 $ 8 344
Eamings per share:

Basic $ 1.17 1.92

Diluted $ 1.17 1.92
Weighted average number of shares:

Basic 179.0 179.0

Diluted 179.8 179.8
Dividends declared per share $ 0.4647 0.4647

See the accompanying notes to the unaudited proforma condensed combined financial statements which are an integral part of these financial

statements.



Xylem Inc.
Unaudited ProForma Condensed Combined Balance Sheets
As of September 30,2016

(in millions)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid and other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Other non-current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued and other current liabilities

Short-term borrowings and current maturities of long-term
debt

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net
Accrued postretirement benefits
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common Stock:
Authorized
Capital in excess of par value
Non-controlling interest
Retained earnings
Treasury stock
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

ProForma
Xylem Inc. Sensus Combined

$ 659 S 54 (449) 4 264
792 106 (1) of 897

488 63 20 og 571

153 26 — 179

2,092 249 (430) 1911

440 107 75 6h 622

1,621 470 581 i 2,672

444 185 591 ¢6j 1,220

181 48 (32) ok 197

$ 4,778 § 1,059 785 6,622
$ 341§ 72 — 413
438 94 3) el 529

62 12 411 4 485

841 178 408 1,427

1,148 591 297 4 2,036

335 84 419

114 32 180 6m 326

113 59 (2) 6n 170

2,551 944 883 4,378

2 — — 2

1,871 252 (252) 60 1,871

— 7 10 6p 17

1,011 (115) 115 60 1,011
(402) — (402)
(255) 29) 29 6o (255)

2,227 115 98) 2,244

$ 4,778 § 1,059 $ 785 6,622

See the accompanying notes to the unaudited proforma condensed combined financial statements which are an integral part of these financial

statements.



1. Description of Transaction:

On November 1, 2016, Xylem Inc. (the “Company”) filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (the “Initial Form 8-K”) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) reporting that on October 31,2016, Xylem Inc. completed the acquisition of all of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of Sensus
Worldwide (other than Sensus Industries) (“Sensus”), pursuant to the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15,2016, and the first
Amendment to the Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 31,2016 (together, the “Purchase Agreement”). The aggregate consideration paid in the
acquisition was approximately $1.7 billion, net of cash acquired, subject to certain adjustments as provided in the Purchase Agreement. The consideration
was funded with a combination of cash on hand, proceeds from issuances under the Company’s existing commercial paper program, borrowings under a new
euro-denominated term loan and the issuance of $500 million aggregate principal amount 0f 3.250% Senior Notes due 2026 and $400 million aggregate
principal amount 0f4.375% Senior Notes due 2046.

2. Basis of Presentation:

The acquisition will be accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with ASC 805-10. The Company is accounting for the
acquisition by using the historical information and accounting policies of Xylem Inc. and adding the assets and liabilities of Sensus, as applied on a proforma
basis as of September 30, 2016, at their respective fair values. Further, and in accordance with ASC 805, the accounting policies of Sensus have been
conformed to those of Xylem in determining the results of operations and the amounts of assets and liabilities to be fair valued. The assets and liabilities of
Sensus have been measured at fair value based on various assumptions that the Company’s management believes are reasonable utilizing information as of
the Acquisition Date.

The process for measuring the fair value of identifiable intangible assets, liabilities and certain tangible assets requires the use of significant assumptions,
including estimates of future cash flows and appropriate discount rates. The excess of the purchase price (consideration transferred) over the amount of
identifiable assets and liabilities of Sensus acquired, on a proforma basis as of September 30, 2016 was allocated to goodwill in accordance with ASC 805-10.
For purposes of measuring the fair value of the Sensus assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as reflected in the unaudited proforma condensed combined
financial statements, the Company used the guidance in ASC Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure”, which establishes a framework for
measuring fair values. ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (an exit price). Market participants are buyers and sellers in the principal (most advantageous) market
for the asset or liability. Additionally, under ASC 820, fair value measurements for an asset assume the highest and best use of that asset by market
participants.

The unaudited proforma condensed combined statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30,2016 includes financial information for
Sensus for the last fiscal quarter of fiscal year-ended March 31, 2016. Financial information for this quarter is also included in the unaudited proforma
condensed combined statement of operations for the year-ended December 31, 2015. These operating results for different annual fiscal year periods are being
appropriately combined for proforma purposes since the fiscal year-end periods are within 93 days of each other, in accordance with SEC guidance.

3. Accounting Policies:
The unaudited proforma condensed combined financial statements reflect adjustments to conform Sensus’ results to Xylem’s application of generally
accepted accounting policies.



These differences resulted in the following income statement and balance sheet line item reclassifications:

INCOME STATEMENTS

Nine months Revised Nine Twelve months Revised Twelve
ended months ended ended months ended
September 30, September 30,

2016 Reclass 2016 December 31,2015 Reclass December 31,2015
Cost of revenue $ 358 § 39§ 397 $ 453§ 47 $ 500
Research and development expenses — 48 48 — 59 59
Selling, general and administrative expenses 157 (39) 118 204 (44) 160
Depreciation and amortization 45 45) — 56 (56) —
Management fees 2 ) — 5 ) —
Interest expense, net 32 4 36 37 — 37
Other non-operating expense 5 ®) — 1 — 1
Net income attributable to controlling
interest — — — 1 1) -
BALANCE SHEET

As of Revised As of
September 30,2016 Reclass September 30,2016

Short-term investments $ 11 3 11) $ —
Prepaid and other current assets 15 11 26
Deferred income taxes - current 28 (28) —
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 599 (599) —
Goodwill — 470 470
Other intangible assets, net — 185 185
Deferred costs - long-term 4 4) —
Other non-current assets 72 24) 48
Accrued and other current liabilities 75 19 94
Deferred revenue - current 19 (19) —
Deferred revenue - long-term 21 21) —
Other non-current liabilities 38 21 59

4. Consideration Paid:

As noted in Note (1), Xylem paid approximately $1.7 billion, net of cash acquired. The consideration was funded with a combination of cash on hand,
proceeds from issuances under the Company’s existing commercial paper program, borrowings under a new euro-denominated term loan and the issuance of
$500 million aggregate principal amount 0f3.250% Senior Notes due 2026 and $400 million aggregate principal amount 0f4.375% Senior Notes due 2046.
The proforma balance sheet has been adjusted to reflect this financing and Sensus' net debt has been removed.
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5. Preliminary Allocation of Consideration Transferred to the Net Assets Acquired:

The following summarizes the Sensus assets acquired and the liabilities assumed by Xylem in the acquisition, assuming the acquisition had been completed
by September 30, 2016, reconciled to the consideration paid to acquire Sensus (in $ millions):

Cash

Accounts Receivable

Inventories

Other current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Other non-current assets
Intangible assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accrued pension

Long-term deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Non-controlling interest
Goodwill

Total Consideration Paid

6. Adjustments to Unaudited ProForma Condensed Combined Income Statements and Balance Sheet:
Adjustments to the unaudited proforma condensed combined income statements for the nine months ended September 30,2016 and the year ended

December 31,2015 for Xylem and March 31,2016 for Sensus were as follows (in $ millions):

a. Revenue: Adjustments to revenue are comprised of the following:

Nine months ended

$ 54
105
83
26
182
16
776
(72)
o1
(84)
212)
(57)
17)
1,051

$ 1,760

Twelve months ended

Decrease in revenue to be recognized from deferred revenue per fair value adjustment $

b. Cost of revenue: Adjustments to cost of revenue are comprised of the following:

Amortization and depreciation of acquired Sensus' intangible and tangible assets $
Elimination of Sensus' historical amortization and depreciation
Amortization of warranty fair value adjustment

September 30,2016 December 31,2015
2 @)
Nine months ended Twelve months ended
September 30,2016 December 31,2015
18 24
29) 35)
) €]
$ (12) (14)

Note: Sensus recorded a reduction to warranty expense of $27 million included within cost of revenue in the quarter ended March 31,2016 as the
result of a change in estimated amounts reserved for in prior periods. This expense reduction is reflected in both the nine months ended September 30,2016
and the twelve months ended December 31,2015 due to the use of Sensus's annual statement of operations for the fiscal year-ended March 31,2016 in the
twelve months ended December 31, 2015 proforma numbers. Additionally, purchase accounting resulted in fair value increases of $20 million and $18
million to inventory and intangible assets, respectively, that was not reflected in the proforma results. These amounts will be amortized into the income

statement within the twelve months subsequent to the acquisition.



c. Selling, general & administrative expenses: Adjustments to selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) are comprised of the following:

Nine months ended Twelve months ended
September 30,2016 December 31,2015
Amortization and depreciation of acquired Sensus' intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment $ 43 $ 57
Elimination of Sensus' historical amortization and depreciation (14) (18)
Elimination of Xylem's acquisition transaction and integration fees (10) —
Elimination of Sensus' management fees 4) 6)
$ 15 $ 33

In connection with the acquisition of Sensus, Xylem anticipates recording additional transaction, integration and restructuring costs of
approximately $30 to $35 million within the twelve months subsequent to the acquisition. Additionally, Xylem will be making additional payments of $8
million to employees under a Sensus change in control retention plan within the twelve months following the acquisition. This cost will be recorded to
compensation expense over twelve month time period as the payments relate to post-acquisition services. None of these above-noted costs are reflected in the
proforma financial information presented.

d. Interest Expense: Adjustments to interest expense is comprised of the following:

Nine months ended Twelve months ended
September 30,2016 December 31,2015
Elimination of Xylem's bridge loan deferred financing cost $ 4) $ =
Elimination of Sensus' debt extinguishment costs “4) —
Interest expense related to acquisition financing 26 35
Elimination of Sensus' historical interest expense 32) (38)
$ (14) $ 3)

e. Provision for income taxes: We have reflected the applicable tax provision on the proforma adjustments presented in the unaudited proforma
condensed combined income statements based on the estimated respective statutory tax rate in the tax jurisdictions of the adjustments. Also note that
Sensus recorded a tax valuation allowance release of $64 million included within income tax expense (benefit) in the quarter ended March 31,2016.
This income tax expense reduction is reflected in both the nine months ended September 30,2016 and the twelve months ended December 31,2015 due
to the use of Sensus's annual statement of operations for the fiscal year-ended March 31,2016 in the twelve months ended December 31, 2015 proforma
numbers.

Adjustments to the unaudited proforma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 30, 2016, were as follows:
f.  Receivables: We have reflected an adjustment to decrease Sensus’ receivables to fair value.
g. Inventories: We have reflected an adjustment to increase Sensus’ inventories to fair value.
h.  Property, plant and equipment: We have reflected an adjustment to increase Sensus’ property plant and equipment to fair value.
i.  Goodwill: Existing goodwill of Sensus of $470 million was eliminated. The new goodwill recorded of $1,051 million is calculated as the difference
between the Acquisition Date fair value of the consideration paid for Sensus in the acquisition and the values assigned to the identifiable Sensus assets
acquired and liabilities assumed as if the acquisition was completed on September 30, 2016. Goodwill is not amortized but rather is subject to

impairment testing on at least an annual basis.

j. Intangibles: Existing net identifiable intangible assets of Sensus of $185 million were removed. Acquired identifiable intangible assets were
measured at fair value determined primarily using the “income approach,” which required a forecast
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of all expected future cash flows either through the use of the relief-from-royalty method or the multi-period excess earnings method. The estimated fair
value of the identifiable intangible assets and their weighted-average useful lives are as follows:

Fair Value Useful Lives
Customer and distributor relationships $ 561 4 - 18 years
Proprietary technology 20 3 -5 years
Trademarks/tradenames 99 10 - 25 years
FCC licenses 24 Indefinite
Internally developed network software 50 7 years
Other 22 1 -12 years

$ 776

k.  Other non-current assets: We have reflected an adjustment to decrease Sensus’ deferred costs to fair value by $4 million. Existing Sensus deferred
tax assets of $28 million were also removed.

l.  Accrued and other current liabilities: We have reflected an adjustment to decrease Sensus’ accrued and other current liabilities to fair value by $1
million. Existing accruals of $2 million for Sensus' management fees were removed.

m. Deferred income tax liabilities: We have reflected a net increase to deferred income tax liabilities to reflect the impact of purchase accounting.
n. Other non-current liabilities: We have reflected an adjustment to decrease Sensus’ other non-current liabilities to fair value.
0. Equity: Existing equity of Sensus was eliminated.

p. Non-controlling interest: We have reflected an adjustment to increase Sensus' non-controlling interest to fair value.
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